
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        SEPTEMBER 4, 2012 

                                                                                  6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / August 20, 2012                                                        
                                                  Emergency Special Called meeting minutes / August 27, 2012 

                                                  Emergency Special Called meeting minutes / August 28, 2012 

 

                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware  

          MOTION:  Set a Public Hearing Date for September 17, 2012 to consider:  

            CDBG Project # LR-CM-{F-09-004 / Highway 64 Sewer Project / 

                               Resolution 2012-66 

  

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake     

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware   

  D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

            

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones            

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway          

    D.  Library Board – Lake  

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette     

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese     

    G.  Utility Board - Scott          
            

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  
     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

David
Typewritten Text



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                            SEPTEMBER 4, 2012                                  PAGE   2 

 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Emergency Purchase of Fire Turnout Gear. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-65 

 

b.)   Formal Program Amendment to the CDBG Grant / 

       Sewer Extension to Highway 64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-66 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

   READ 
a.)   Rezone: D.R. Horton Property. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-50      
 

b.)   US Fish & Wildlife: Invasive Species Control Project 

       Village Point/Bay Front Park / Cash Match . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-51     

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Design & Engineering for Lake Forest:  

       Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive – Phase 3 Resurfacing Project . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-52     

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

1 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
The invocation was given by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly 

Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City 

Clerk;  Britton Bonner, Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Scott 

Hutchinson, City Engineer; Larry Cooke, BZA; Douglas Dugat, Recreation Board; Joe Lemoine, 

Planning Commission; Willie Robison, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

ABSENT: Jay Ross, City Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Vickie Hinman, Human 

Resources Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

Council President Barnette said that Mrs. Hayes handed out a revised Resolution 2012-58. 

 

  

3. APPROVE MINUTES: 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the August 6, 2012 council meeting 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the August 13, 2012 Work Session minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                    ABSTAIN    Reese     

 

                          NAY    NONE OPPOSED                     MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  Adam McDonald / Eagle Scout Project 

 

Mr. McDonald presented a power point presentation of his project building benches at the 

Village Point Park Preserve beach.  He constructed six (6) benches for those who visit the beach.  



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

2 
 

His project was funded by the Lowes on Range Line Road.  He was helped by family friends and 

other Boy Scouts. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Recognizing Samuel Jenkins  

 

Mayor Yelding read and presented the proclamation to Mr. Jenkins recognizing his service to 

Baldwin County. 

 

PRESENTATION:   Introduction of New Firefighters / Chief White 

 

Chief White introduced the new firefighters that will be manning the new Fire Station on Stanton 

Road serving the south end of the city. 

 

Ryan Hall  3 years firefighting experience 

James Rogers  22 years firefighting experience 

Jeremy Richardson 3 years firefighting experience and is currently enrolled in Paramedics  

                           school 

Chad Case  2 years firefighting experience 

 

They will be assigned to Field Officers for 30 days before being assigned to the new Fire Station. 

 

PRESENTATION:     New Council Member / Elected without Opposition / Robin LeJeune /  

District 6 

 

Mayor Yelding read and presented the Certificate of Election to Mr. LeJeune. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:       Rezone:  D. R. Horton      

     

       Location:      West of AL Hwy. 181, near the intersection of Cambrell Drive and 

Devonfield Lane 

 

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business, R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and R-3,  

 High Density Single Family Residential 

 

Requested Zoning: R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential 

           

Recommendation:  Failed to set forth a favorable recommendation.  Five members voted in the 

affirmative and one abstention.  Although the majority of those present voted 

in favor of the motion, a super majority would have been necessary for a 

favorable recommendation. 

 

 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

3 
 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Planning Director, gave the presentation.  She said they were trying to 

resolve the split zoning so that the property will stay residential instead of commercial.  They are 

removing all commercial zoning. 

 

Council President Barnette said that the reason it did not have a favorable recommendation was 

that the motion needed a super majority, and there were five that voted in favor of the motion 

with one abstention. 

 

Council President Barnette opened the Public Hearing at 6:45 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the rezoning. 

 

Council President Barnette closed the Public Hearing at 6:46 p.m. 

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A. FINANCE – Boulware 

The minutes for the August 13
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers Report as of July 31, 2012, in 

the amount of $18,761,690.99.   Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION:    To approve going out to bid for Fiber Installation/Service 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve going out to bid for Fiber Installation / 

Service.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collections: 
 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for June 2012    -   $996,637. 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for June 2012    -   $966,165              

Over Budget (for June)                                    -  $  30,472. 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $69,833. 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

4 
 

 

Lodging Tax Collections: 

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $69,822.91 collected for June 2012.     

    
The next meeting will be September 10

th
 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room.   

 

 B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the August 6
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

 C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the August 8
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.   

 

 E.        PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/ SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

 A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be October 4
th

.   The council needs to appoint two (2) alternates. 

 

 B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The next meeting will be Monday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 

The minutes for the July 30
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

 D. Library Board – Lake 

The board has not met since the last meeting.  He reported that on August 24
th

 starts Digital 

Renaissance training.  The next meeting will be September 13
th

.  

 

 

 E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

No meeting in August. 

 

 F. Recreation Board – Reese 

No report. 

 

 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

5 
 

 G. Utility Board – Scott 

The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month which is August 29
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in 

the council chambers.   

 

 

6. REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

 A. Mayor’s Report 

                       a.)  Parade Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / February 1, 2013 / Rain  

                             Date February 7, 2013          

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permit for Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / 

Mardi Gras / February 1, 2013 / Rain Date February 7, 2013.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED  

       

                  

 B. City Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

 C. Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – announced the Fall sports registration has concluded.  

There is a softball tournament this weekend at Trione.  Brown Bag by the Bay starts in 

September at May Day Park.  

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Taste of the Eastern Shore was 

Friday, and it was sold out. There will be a Candidate Forum Tuesday at 6:30 p.m. 

 

David Cohen - City Clerk - reminded council that the need to call a Special Called meeting to 

canvass the vote on Tuesday, September 4
th

.  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Special Called council meeting for September 4, 

2012 at 10:00 a.m. to canvass the vote of the Municipal Election held August 28, 2012.   

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR        NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

 

No one spoke. 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

6 
 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS: 

  

 RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Appointing Election Officials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-58       

 

b.)  Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Dunmore Subdivision 

       Phase Two, Part C, Phase One. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-59       

 

c.)    Microwave Communication Network Lease /  

        JMF Solutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-60       

 

d.)    Tower Lease Agreement / JMF Solutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-61       

 

e.)     Declaring Certain City Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-62       
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-58, 2012-59, 

2012-60, 2012-61 and 2012-68. Seconded by Councilwoman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolutions 2012-58 as revised.  Seconded by 

Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTIONBY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolutions 2012-59, 2012-60 and 2012-61.  

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION by Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-62.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                   NAY    Lake            

 

                                                         MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

7 
 

  ORDINANCES: 

           

        1
ST

    READ 
a.)   Rezone: D.R. Horton Property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-50    

 

b.)   US Fish & Wildlife: Invasive Species Control Project 

       Village Point/Bay Front Park / Cash Match . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-51     

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Design & Engineering for Lake Forest:  

       Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive – Phase 3 Resurfacing Project . . . /Ordinance 2012-52     

 

 

ORDINANCES 2012-50, 2012-51 AND 2012-51 ATE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Mayor Yelding stated that the budget was almost ready to present to the Finance Committee. 

 

Councilman Lake said that as he went door to door campaigning citizens in his district were 

very complimentary of Public Works employees.  He said when they pick up the trash the 

employees also rake up around to get everything. 

 

Councilman Reese commented on his request at the last council meeting that candidates not 

make campaign speeches during public participation, that he prefers their comments be regarding 

what was on the agenda.  He said that everyone has a definite right to attend council meetings, 

but not a definite right to address the council. He does not want his comments to be construed 

that citizens can’t speak at council meetings. 

 

Councilman Boulware encouraged everyone to come out to the candidate forum tomorrow. 

 

Councilman Palumbo urged everyone to get out and vote.  He mentioned that municipal 

election turnout is very low.  He thanked Mr. Jenkins for his service with the County 

Commission.  He said Mr. Jenkins was a cool headed, wise old owl, and he congratulated him 

for the portion of highway that was named after him. 

 

Council President Barnette – said that if anyone felt that her and Mr. Reese’s comments at the 

last council meeting meant that they could not speak then she apologizes.  She welcomed Mr. 

LeJeune to the council and thanked Mr. Jenkins for his service. She also welcomed the new 

firefighters. 

 

 

 

 

 



AUGUST 20, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

8 
 

 

10. ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer, 

 

 

        __________________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 



AUGUST 27, 2012 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

3:00 P.M. 

 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; 

Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.  

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay, City 

Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; James 

White, Fire Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Michele 

Hanson, Human Resource Admin; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Douglas Dugat, Recreation Board; 

Larry Cooke, BZA; Bob Segalla, Utility Board. 

 
 

3. DISCUSS:  POSTPONING THE MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
Council President Barnette said it would be appropriate to hear from the candidates before council made a decision 

whether to postpone the election or not. 

 

Mr. Douglas Dugat – Candidate for District 4 – said he was in favor with having the election tomorrow, but should 

put the safety of citizens above everything. 

 

Mr. Harry Brown – Candidate for Mayor -  said it was up to the council to make the decision, but they should keep 

the safety of citizens in mind when making that decision. 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell – Candidate for District 1 -  said that a portion of the people had already evacuated, and asked if 

council could provide fairness and justice for everyone in this case.                                                    

Council discussed the pros and cons, safety of citizens and the mandatory evacuation order by the 

Governor earlier and what effect that would have if they decided to have the election as scheduled. 

Council President Barnette asked council to call a recess while the City Clerk checked with Spanish 

Fort and Fairhope to see what they decided. 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to recess for 15 minutes and reconvene at 3:45 p.m.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR               NAY    NONE OPPOSED               MOTION CARRIED 

 Council recessed at 3:30 p.m. 

Council reconvened at 3:42 p.m. 

 



AUGUST 27, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to proceed with the municipal election as scheduled for August 

28, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

Council discussed the motion. 

Councilman Palumbo withdrew his motion. 

Councilman Lake withdrew his second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to postpone the municipal election to September 11, 2012. 

Motion died for lack of a second. 

 The municipal election will be held August 28, 2012. 
 

 

4.  ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                            Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 
 

 



AUGUST 28, 2012 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

3:00 P.M. 

 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Council President Barnette waived the invocation and pledge of allegiance. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.  

 

ABSENT:   Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Ron Scott; 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Chip Martin, Fire Marshal. 

 
 

3. DISCUSS:  DECLARING A STATE OF EMERGENCY / RESOLUTION 2012-63 

Chip Martin, Fire Marshal, and the Mayor said that they are asking for the declaration of emergency for 

FEMA reimbursement. He said the county set their termination of the declaration for Wednesday at 12:00 

noon unless the conditions warrant extension.   

 

Mr. Ross suggested to have a start time of 7:01 p.m. instead of designating a time to delegate to the Mayor 

the authority to decide when to terminate the declaration. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-63 amending the 

declaration to go into effect Tuesday August 28, 2012 at 7:01 p.m. and shall continue until emergency 

conditions are no longer being experienced in the City of Daphne, and the Mayor has full authority to 

terminate Daphne’s State of Emergency when conditions warrant.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-63 as amended.  Seconded by 

Councilman Reese. 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR               NAY    NONE OPPOSED               MOTION CARRIED 

  

 

 

 



AUGUST 28, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

 

4.  ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 3:11 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                            Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 



 

Resolution 2012-65 

 

Emergency Purchase of Fire Turnout Gear 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne needs to make purchases of Fire Turnout Gear for new 
Fire Department employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of 
Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000 and the cost for 
such boom will exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, this turnout gear is necessary to protect the firemen while fighting fires. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an emergency purchase of fire turnout gear for the four new hires is 
hereby authorized in the amount not to exceed $8,000.  The nature of such emergency 
is to protect the health, and safety needs of City’s firefighters and the citizens of 
Daphne.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne this _____ 

day of ____________, 2012. 
 
      ____________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
David L. Cohen 
City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION # 2012-66 
 

AUTHORIZING A FORMAL PROGRAM AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE’S CDBG GRANT #LR-CM-PF-09-004- Sewer Extension to Highway 64  

 

WHERE AS, the State of Alabama has made a grant to the City of Daphne in the amount of 

$500,000 with the City’s commitment to provide a cash match of $1,008,000 to extend the 

sanitary sewer to the residents along Highway 64; and 

 

WHERE AS, the City of Daphne desires to formally amend this project to reduce the amount 

of grant funds and matching funds proportionally.  The project is now complete and was 

completed under budget, therefore the full amount of grant funds and matching funds will not 

be needed; and 

 

WHERE AS, the public was informed about the proposed formal amendment in a public 

hearing held on September 17, 2012 at Daphne’s City Hall. 

 

WHERE AS, the revised total project cost is $1,187,107 with $397,690 in grant funds and 

$789,417 in matching funds provided by the City of Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, AL 

that the formal program amendment has been submitted, is hereby approved and authorizes the 

Mayor to sign all appropriate grant application forms. 

 

Motion to approve the foregoing resolution and authorize the Mayor to sign all 

appropriate grant application forms was made by Council 

Person___________________________________ , was seconded by Council 

Person___________________________________ and was approved by the 

Council on this the______ day of  September, 2012. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF ____________________, 2012. 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL 

CORPORATION 

 

 

__________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

__________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING JR., 

MAYOR, CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 



ATTENTION 

RESIDENTS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

CDBG Project # LR-CM-PF-09-004 
Highway 64 Sewer Project 

 
 
THE CITY OF DAPHNE WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON SEPTEMBER 
17, 2012 AT 6:30PM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER LOCATED WITHIN 
DAPHNE CITY HALL LOCATED ON 1705 MAIN STREET.  There will be two 
items discussed  in this hearing.  
 
#1- Consideration by the City Council of a Formal Amendment   
The  Daphne City council  is requesting a formal program amendment from  the 
State  of  Alabama  to reduce the total cost of the Highway 64 Sewer project 
which was funded with Community Development Block Grant Funds and local 
matching funds. The project is complete and the total cost of this project came in 
under budget. Therefore the city will reduce the grant funds and the local  
matching funds by the same proportion in order to maintain the same grant –
match ratio that was in the original project. There are no other changes being 
considered.  
 
#2- Discussion of the close out of this project.  
The second  purpose of this hearing will be to provide information to the public 
about CDBG project LR-CM-PF-09-004,  Highway 64 sewer  extension.  This 
project was recently completed.  
 
The purpose of this hearing is to make available to the public  the close-out 
documents for this project.   All funds have been spent and all activities are 
complete.  Records documenting the benefit of low and moderate income 
persons will be available for review. 
 
This hearing will be accessible to all people in attendance.  If you have a 
disability which might require special materials or assistance please notify the 
city  at 621-9000 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
 City of Daphne 



ORDINANCE NO. 2012 - 50 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located West Side of Alabama Highway 181, near 

the Intersection of Camberwell Drive and Devonfield Lane 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from B-1, Local Business, R-1 Low Density Single Family and R-

3 High Density Single Family Residential to R-1, Low Density  Single Family Residential District, said 

property is located West Side of Alabama Highway 181, near the intersection of Camberwell Drive and 

Devonfield Lane being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 

COMMON AREA 1A, COMMON AREA 2A, AND LOT 142A OF OLDFIELD 

RESUBDIVISION AS SHOWN BY MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED ON SLIDE 

NO. 2469-B IN THE PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

REFERENCE:  Oldfield Resubdivision, the Resubdivision of Common Area 1, Common Area 2, Lot 

77, and Lot 142 of Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 28, 2012 has considered said 

request and failed to set forth an affirmative recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne that 

said property  be rezoned, although the majority voted in favor of the motion, a super majority would have 

been necessary for a favorable recommendation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

August 20, 2012 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from B-1, Local Business, R-

1 Low Density Single Family and R-3 High Density Single Family Residential to  R-1, Low Density  Single 

Family Residential District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said 

zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS   _____ day of _______________, 2012. 

         

 

        _____________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette,  

        Council President 

                                        

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Bailey Yelding,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 









Ordinance 2012-51 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife: Invasive Species Control Project: Village Point/Bay Front Park – 

Cash Match 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 
November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Coastal Assistance Program has grant funding 
available for invasive species control for waterfront areas and a control plan has been 
prepared for the benefit of Village Point/Bayfront Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did submit an application to U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Coastal Assistance Program and was awarded a Grant in the amount of $34,400.00 
(City Match of $6,400 in-kind services and $10,000 Cash from Lodging Tax Fund) 
for funding for the Invasive Species Control Plan; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds  from the Lodging Tax Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part 
of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $10,000 for a cash match for the U. S. Fish 
and Wildlife: Invasive Species Control Project: Village Point/BayFront Park Grant.  
Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute all agreements, on behalf of the City of 
Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this ___   day of _____, 2012. 

         

                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President    

     

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

   







ORDINANCE 2012-52 

 

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS: DESIGN AND ENGINEERING  FOR LAKE FOREST 

ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT:  RIDGEWOOD & BAYVIEW DRIVES - PHASE 3   

 

WHERE AS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 

November 21, 2011; and 

 

WHERE AS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of the 

Fiscal Year 2012 Budget; and 

 

WHERE AS, the Lake Forest: Ridgewood and Bayview Drives Phase 3 (1.9 miles) project, has 

been selected for ATRIP Grant Funding and need to go out for bid per State and Federal 

guidelines; and 

 

WHERE AS, Design and engineering services in the amount of $220,705.00 are required to 

prepare this project for bid: 

 

 Lake Forest: Ridgewood and Bayview Drives - Phase 3: TOTAL -  $220,705.00 

 

WHERE AS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to prepare 

bid documents for this project if selected for ATRIP Grant Funding by unanimously passing 

Resolution 2012-19 during the March 5,2012 City Council Meeting authorizing the City to meet 

the cost sharing required by the ATRIP grant for the proposed City of Daphne Street 

Improvement Projects. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council (the "Council") of Daphne, 

Alabama (the "City"), that funds in the amount of $220,705.00 from the Capital Reserve Fund 

are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the design and 

engineering services for the  Lake Forest: Ridgewood and Bayview Drives - Phase 3 project. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS    DAY OF    , 2012. 

 

 

              

      CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

      COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

              

      BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

ATTEST:     MAYOR, CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

      

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 






	AGENDA - September 4
	City Roll Call
	Council Minutes - August 20
	Council Minutes - August 27 -Emergency Special Called
	Council Minutes - August 28 -Emergency Special Called
	Reporting of Standing Committees
	Special Reports
	Mayors Report
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE
	2012-65 - RES - Emergency Purchase Auth - FD Turnout Gear-2012
	2012-66  - RES - CDBG 2009 Amendment
	Backup to 2012-66 - RES
	2012-50 - ORD - D. R. Horton Rezoning
	Backup to 2012-50 - ORD
	2012-51 - ORD - US Fish and Wildlife-Invasive Species Control-2011-Ord Lodging Tax Match
	Backup to 2012-51 - ORD - USFW Invasvie Species Grant Appropriation Request
	2012-52 - ORD - Ridgewood and Bayview Resurfacing Phase 3
	Backup to 2012-52 - ORD - #1 -  ATRIP App - Supplemental 06-28-2012 Lake Forest Boulevards CODFY13-D



